
MINUTES 

  

TCC WORKING GROUP MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 22, 2025 

WILLIAM L. PULLEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING MEETING ROOM 

ONLINE NON-INTERACTIVE ON TOWN HALL STREAMS 

6:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Todd Souza (Town Manager), Wayne Kirkpatrick, Steve Migliorini, John 

Mountainland, Matthew Eddy (MCOG), and Abraham Knight 

 

1. Meeting called to order: at 6:00 p.m. by Wayne Kirkpatrick 

 

Matt Eddy of MCOG said we had communication back from Developers Collaborative 

(DC). He recapped that in the bidding process, which was a year ago now, they were 

going to come back and provide us a joint development agreement in which they would 

be the developers. 

 

Matt said the proposal we got back from them is not that. It is proposing to be a 

consultant, and they would like us to identify a developer to work with. They would be 

the development consultant, and they provided us the outline for a development 

consultant agreement. 

 

He said the primary reason that they did this was they think one of the best directions for 

us to get funding is a 4% low-income housing tax credit for seniors. He said there is a 4% 

and a 9% rate for this. The 9% is very competitive, and you need a project of at least 40 

units and of scale and size that you can compete statewide for those credits. He said that’s 

why we also established the TIF, so that we would be eligible for a tax credit. 

 

He said they are now telling him they believe that a 4% tax credit along with historic tax 

credits, which they did not identify in this list, is the way to go and for that they need a 

nonprofit development professional group. We are kind of back to square one with what 

he would consider to be one of the premier consultant teams for housing development in 

the state of Maine, Developers Collaborative. 

 

John said his issue was they haven’t done anything they said they were going to do yet. 

Steve confirmed they are not a nonprofit, they are for profit. Wayne said once we outline 

all this, it needs to go back to the select board for, as Matt said, guidance on next steps. 

 

Matt said to Todd the way they had set up approvals at town meeting is that it always can 

go back to the select board. They (select board) ultimately have the final review. This 

committee is an advisory committee. 

 

Wayne said a select board question would be they haven’t outlined the historic tax credits 

yet. He asked if they’ve heard any word back from the state. 



TCC Working Group Meeting Minutes – January 22, 2025 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Matt’s understanding was the state was supposed to review it in November/December, 

but he hasn’t gotten word back from anybody. Wayne asked about a signed development 

agreement so we could move forward. Steve said there was a timeframe on the letter of 

intent which they fulfilled. 

 

Matt said because the historic tax credit took longer than we thought, it’s their (DC’s) 

opinion that we’ve missed any ability to apply for any programs this year except for the 

low-income tax credit where you can go in at any time. But the rental program which we 

still think is ideal, and which their timeframe actually would fit to meet the rental 

program next year – they felt they can’t hit any real development periods this year. In 

deference to them, we didn’t get an answer on the water line until real recently which was 

an issue for them.  

 

In answer to Abe and Steve, Matt said that water line has capacity – if we extend it 1000’ 

from where it is in the street we can serve this building, we can serve that building with 

public water. Abe confirmed with Matt the water company actually said that. In answer to 

Steve about who is “we,” Matt said Maine Water won’t extend it, they’re a utility. He 

wouldn’t propose that the Town of Union is responsible for extending the line. He would 

see it as part of this project, and we would be identifying grant money to pay for it. It’s 

partly the CDBG, it's partly the congressional ask as part of the CDS process, and it’s 

whatever other funding sources we look for. 

 

Abe reconfirmed Maine Water said there’s enough capacity to do that, and Matt said they 

also sent us a plan. Todd will send it to the group. 

 

In answer to Wayne, Matt said he has to find a nonprofit. DC is not going to go out 

looking for it. This is the crux of the issue. What he’d like the working group to do 

maybe even before they go back to the select board is give him two to three months to 

identify a potential nonprofit that has a real interest. He would be presenting to the 

nonprofits a plan and a consultant who will help them through the development process.  

 

Matt said that by having them (DC) on board, we do open up to a couple of organizations 

that didn’t have an interest last time because they’re not developers, they just manage 

senior housing. If this were a project that would be handed to them, would they be 

interested in doing it? That is the fundamental issue: can he find another nonprofit? The 

VOA (Volunteers of America) whom we had talked to originally had too much on their 

plate at the time and may have interest. A new discussion is they may not want DC as a 

partner. Penquis is still an option. Waldo CAP is an option (though he doubts they would 

come here). Matt also mentioned Midcoast Housing out of Rockland, and he will ask 

Midcoast Regional Housing Trust again. He added that he always thought they were the 

right partners, but they only want to do work force and rental – he has a call in to them. 

He added beyond that, it’s a short list. 

 

Wayne proposed that we give Matt through March to see what he can come up with, go 

back to the select board, and it’s going to be fish or cut bait. At that point, he said, it’s 



TCC Working Group Meeting Minutes – January 22, 2025 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

going to come up about the money we paid to get the historic tax credits. After some back 

and forth, John said as long as the building qualifies we split the cost. Abe asked what if 

DC is not involved. Steve reiterated if the building qualifies, they (DC) were going to 

reimburse us for the full cost and confirmed we have a signed agreement to that effect. 

 

Todd brought up this MOU (Memorandum of Understanding) they asked about. There 

are certain stipulations. Some he doesn’t think qualify, such as do we have to secure the 

water line before heating of the building. He and Matt will go back to DC for answers, to 

have both sets of information for the group. He added we should definitely know about 

tax credits by that point. 

 

Consensus was March is a good target deadline. 

 

John mentioned they haven’t mentioned anything about the septic, another issue that will 

have to be addressed. Todd said sewer, water, and heating are the three things that have 

big ramifications to both sides of the building regardless of one or the other. 

 

Abe asked if DC is not going to do any building, and the nonprofit isn’t going to do any 

building, who is going to do the work? 

 

Matt said we can go to the state for securing the environmental assessment funding. Todd 

questioned words like “secure CDBG block grants, approve 75% of the TIF” and that is 

where we get into the negotiation part in executive session. He reiterated that he would 

like to go back and understand that reasoning to explain to the group. 

 

Matt read  loud the first sentence under the nonprofit owner: “The nonprofit owner 

should have the technical capacity to be a successful development partner… and have the 

financial capacity to pay predevelopment costs associated with facilitating design 

development, securing permitting approval, and planning for financing.” He was not sure 

that’s necessary at this stage if they are the consultant team – the idea is they would be 

taking their pay for that predevelopment cost out of their fee. We need to talk with them 

to find out what the extent of that piece is. He said that was the one that stuck out at him. 

He added we would have to develop, he’s assuming, a purchase and sale agreement that 

provides us guidance on how to do it correctly to meet those requirements. 

 

Abe brought up the $500,000 community development block grant we have to apply for 

and asked what if that doesn’t come through. Todd said it says supply and secure. Matt 

and he need a conversation with them to explain these details. 

 

Matt also looked at the line, “The nonprofit owner will take responsibility for all 

predevelopment tasks and expenses.” He said it appears they don’t want to carry any of 

the engineering costs. We need clarification from them. 

 

John said they stipulated about continuing to heat the building, which hasn’t been heated 

in a long time.  



TCC Working Group Meeting Minutes – January 22, 2025 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Steve asked where the 75% TIF number came from. Matt said we originally proposed 

50%. They came back to us awhile ago and said they might need 75%, a difference. Abe 

confirmed we would get less in this case, which Matt said would be important for doing 

the TCC. Matt added this is where it always gets tricky in any development project – that 

75% doesn’t need to be 75% if the resources that we bring into the project (CDBG, low-

income housing tax credit, historic tax credit) create enough equity. 

 

Wayne said we’re not going to have enough money in the kitty to renovate the TCC. Matt 

said the approach was go to rural development, get a grant and a loan, ideally they’ll give 

us 50-50. The loan gets paid off by the TIF. That 50% to 75% is an important figure.  

 

Steve said he didn’t realize the TIF could have that much play in it. Matt said generally a 

50-50 TIF doesn’t cost you anything in your overall valuations as it relates to the school 

aid formula or county taxes. It’s kind of a wash around that 50 % point. If you take more 

you might be more responsible for more school aid, if you take less you might be 

responsible for less school aid, etc. 

 

Wayne brought up leveling it to bare ground and having somebody come in like DC is in 

Rockland and build starting from scratch, with state of the art buildings. John said 

Wayne’s idea is much cheaper than rehabbing. Abe asked where to get the money to level 

it, it’s got to be tax dollars. Wayne said we put money away. Abe didn’t think it would be 

enough. Matt said it’s the notion of trying to save a historic building that’s important to 

the community, but we’re going to get down to the final dollars that are going to help 

make that decision.  

 

Wayne said we just need more answers and give Matt some time to do it. Matt said we’ll 

set up a zoom meeting. Todd said we can set an executive session to draft a negotiation 

document to say to Matt’s point, for example, we may be willing to go up to 75% if 

there’s no other funding to offset it – the group will have to decide with the board’s 

guidance at that point. He will attend the TMA meeting next week. He said our goal is to 

finish the charge – to run through, is this the agreement or is there an opportunity to fix 

something that works for you? Once that is put to bed the next decision levels will have 

to be made by the board given the power by the committee. His goal is to hopefully keep 

these things separate: we have all the answers, now here comes the rubber meets the 

road/what we’re going to do. 

 

John suggested if the nonprofit wants to run the whole show, we can kick DC out and 

take it from there. Matt said they would have to have the capacity to be a developer. 

Consensus was keep our options open at this point.  

 

Abe said if you go to somebody like Penquis they may want both buildings and asked if 

that could be considered knowing it would have to go to a vote. John said he thought it 

should be encouraged. Wayne agreed. 

 



TCC Working Group Meeting Minutes – January 22, 2025 

 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Discussion followed. Matt said Maine Housing is strong and separate from the state. He 

said everything we did to set in motion was that rental program. DC didn’t feel that we’d 

have enough time to get in the rental program. In answer to Steve, Matt said DC is 

proposing to wait until next year but not as a developer. He did not know why; he thought 

the combination of trying to pull together the info on water and info on the historic tax 

credit just bumped us to the back.. 

 

Abe’s impression was they had the money; it was just historic tax credits so they could 

get paid. He asked where did the money go. John said a developer never uses their own 

money; you line up all your funding, and if something happens that you don’t meet 

deadlines you start losing that, and it changes the scope of the project. Matt said that’s as 

sound a guess as any. 

 

The group charged Matt to do the work, take three months, and get the information by the 

end of March. 

 

Todd brought up the upcoming select board agenda and an update of what happened here. 

Matt will type up something. Abe said we’re back where we started. Matt said we have a 

great outline now of how to go forward with the project, after the first two pages.  

 

All agreed to communicate by email. John said call if something’s needed right away. 

 

Abe asked if all these things would go away and we wouldn’t be responsible if we went 

with Penquis. Matt didn’t know but said they may be willing to sign on if they don’t have 

to be the person that develops the application and the project. He said that’s what’s 

different than before – we actually have somebody that’s willing to develop the project. 

He said the cost issue is a bit of a red herring; it should be picked up in the development 

project, so that’s gap that has not been there before in anything talked about. 

 

Steve asked how they (DC) would get paid. Matt said there are fees structured into any of 

these grant programs. John said ultimately they would skim off 10% of the project costs.  

 

Wayne asked for comments. There were none. 

 

2. Meeting adjourned: at 6: 40 p.m. by Wayne Kirkpatrick 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Sherry Abaldo 

Secretary 


